
Executive/Minutes (12 October 07) - 1 - 

 

 

 

 

S O U T H  O F  M A R K E T  P R O J E C T  A R E A  C O M M I T T E E  

 1035 FOLSOM STREET •  SAN FRANCISCO, CA  •  94103 

415.487.2166 Fax 415. 487.2169 • website: http://www.sompac.com 
Advisory Body to the San Francisco Redevelopment Agency 

 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
Monday November 13, 2007 

12:00 noon 
 
Presiding Chair (12:02 PM) 
Charles Range 

 
Roll Call (12:02 PM)  
Present: Charles Range/SOM Health Center, John Markham, Ingrid Aquino (/12:08 PM) 
John Melone/SAN (/12:16 PM) and Raymon Smith  
 
Absent: Chris Durazo/SOMCAN 
 
Staff: Marcia Ban and Karen Nolan 
 
Agency Staff: Cathy Pickering  
 
Guests: Jason Ortega and Antoinetta Stadlman 
 
Chair’s Report (12:03 PM) 
Mr. Range announced that he was requested to preside over today’s meeting due to Ms. 
Durazo’s absence.  

 
Approval of Executive Committee Minutes (12:04 PM) 
 
Motion: “To approve the minutes of the October 2007 Executive Committee as is.” 

  
Vote: Yes: 3  No: 0  Abstain: 0  Motion Passes 

 
Agenda Order (12:05 PM) 
1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14,15 

 
Motion:  “To approve the Executive Committee agenda as is.” 
 
Vote: Yes: 3  No: 0  Abstain: 0  Motion Passes 

  
 Announcement of next Executive Committee meeting 

Mr. Range announced that the next Executive Committee meeting would be Monday 
December 10th, 2007 at noon. 



Executive/Minutes (12 October 07) - 2 - 

 
 
 
 
Staff Matters 

 
Agenda Item 6.  Secretary/Treasurer’s Report by Marcia Ban (12:06 PM) 
Ms. Ban referred to the financial report that everyone has a copy of and stated that the 
report reflects through the end of October. We have expended 33% with 67% remaining. Mr. 
Range referred to the carryover amount from the prior year and requested that the 
accountant not reflect this in parenthesis as it appears to be a negative dollar amount. 
 
Agenda Item 7. Staff Activities Report by Marcia Ban (12:08 PM) 
Ms. Ban announced that she sent an announcement to all members on October 31st 
regarding the next newsletter. She requested that any article submissions be sent to her no 
later than November 16th. Ms. Ban stated that there will be an election of PAC Officers next 
month and she would like to send an announcement in packets to all members. 

 
PAC Matters 

 
Agenda Item 8. PAC Vacancies/Bad Standing by Marcia Ban (12:09 PM) 
Mr. Ortega missed three consecutive PAC meetings and is off the PAC. He is here today for 
reinstatement. Ms. Romero has been on a three month leave of absence and is expected 
back this month. She has been reminded that she must return this month. There are 
currently three vacancies; two Non-SRO Residential Tenant seats and the Bessie 
Carmichael Parent seat. 
 
Mr. Markham referred to the Bessie Carmichael Parent seat and wanted to know how long 
this seat has been vacant. Ms. Ban stated that this seat has been vacant for over one year. 
Mr. Markham stated that we should have a vote to remove this seat if there is no interest. 
Mr. Range reminded everyone that PAC seats cannot be removed except through action by 
the Board of Supervisors. Mr. Smith stated that Supervisor Daly is trying to amend this 
seat to include grandparents. He explained that most parents work and it is the 
grandparents who take the children to school and participate in school activities. 
 
Agenda Item 9. Jason Ortega’s Reinstatement to the PAC by Charles Range  
(12:11 PM) 
Mr. Range announced that Mr. Ortega has provided a letter requesting reinstatement to his 
Non-SRO Residential Tenant seat. Mr. Smith stated that he has reviewed Mr. Ortega’s 
letter and believes his absences were due to circumstances beyond his control. He would 
like to make a motion for reinstatement. Mr. Markham seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Ortega stated that he missed three PAC meetings due to course work at City College. 
He works at SOMCAN and has many projects to complete as well as many reports and 
exams for his course work. This caused him to be overwhelmed and miss PAC meetings. 
Mr. Ortega stated that he recognizes the importance of being involved in the work of the 
PAC for the community and he would like to be reinstated to his seat. 
 
Ms. Aquino stated that Mr. Ortega is very hard working in the community and very 
dedicated to the VMD Park group. She stated that we need the voice of young people that 
Mr. Ortega provides. 
Motion: “The Executive Committee recommends reinstating Mr. Ortega to the Non-SRO 
Residential Tenant seat on the PAC.” 
 



Executive/Minutes (12 October 07) - 3 - 

Vote:  Yes: 4  No: 0  Abstain: 0  Motion Passes 
 
Agenda Item 10. Policy Clarification Regarding Agency Staff and PAC Members by 
John Markham (12:16 PM) 
Mr. Markham announced that he would like to know what the policy is regarding PAC 
members and Agency personnel relations after hours. He stated that there was a 
circumstance of an Agency employee giving a ride home to a PAC member after a meeting. 
Mr. Grisso had previously stated that this could not happen anymore and that any contact 
from PAC members must go through him. Mr. Markham stated that he would like to invite 
Ms. McNulty from Urban Solutions, and her new husband to dinner, but now he is reluctant 
to do so. 
 
Mr. Smith stated that as a former civil servant he knows there were very clear policies, but it 
has been quite some time and he is not sure of the current rules. Mr. Range stated that this 
is not the same as civil service employees. The PAC consists of volunteer members and 
government employees. Mr. Range stated that you can associate with whomever you want 
as long as you do not cloud the working relationship. He stated that for example, a PAC 
member could have lunch with an Agency employee, but you must pay for your own lunch. 
Mr. Range stated that he does not know if the Agency has an internal policy regarding 
relationships with PAC members.  
 
Ms. Aquino stated that she believes this occurred due to an employee of the Agency asking 
if she needed a ride home because she lives in a gritty area of the neighborhood. She 
believes this is the cause of Mr. Grisso stating that Agency employees cannot associate 
with PAC members. Ms. Aquino pointed out that she has enough common sense not to 
discuss influential things with Agency personnel. Ms. Stadlman stated that she was given a 
ride home by an employee of the Agency too. Ms. Stadlman stated that when she was 
before the PAC for election, an Agency employee stated to the PAC that Ms. Stadlman 
would be a great member based upon her past experience as Chair of the PAC. This 
Agency employee was later written up for this incident.  She stated that this seems like 
control freak behavior to her and it must stop. 
 
Ms. Pickering stated that she would like to shed light on the bigger picture and clarify the 
problem. The PAC is an advisory body that advises the Agency on policy issues in the 
South of Market. The PAC’s decision making must be of your own domain. The concern is 
that the Agency representatives that have a relationship with the PAC are the project 
manager and the assistant project manager. The Agency wants to ensure that PAC 
members do not receive other information and advice. The project manager and assistant 
project manager is the PAC’s conduit to the Agency. 
 
Mr. Smith stated that the position the Agency takes is a best practice to take a defining role 
between the PAC and the Agency. He would suggest that the Agency be more forthcoming 
with information and documentation, and to do this in a timely manner. Ms. Stadlman stated 
that in open discussions you should be able to speak to whomever you want and you should 
be able to hear differences of opinion. 
 
Ms. Pickering stated that this decision was not made by her or Mr. Grisso. It was a higher 
decision made by the Agency. Ms. Aquino stated that when she is here she is a PAC 
member. When she leaves she is a private citizen and able to do whatever she wants to do. 
She stated that she is insulted that the Agency would think that she does not have the 
common sense to not discuss sensitive issues with others. 
 
Mr. Markham stated that he requested this agenda item to discuss social interaction. Mr. 
Range stated that the question raises the broader issue of social interactions leading to 



Executive/Minutes (12 October 07) - 4 - 

business interactions. He referred to Mr. Markham having dinner with employees of Urban 
Solutions and stated that you can socialize all you want. The Agency cannot tell you or 
Urban Solutions what to do. 
 
Ms. Pickering stated that she is only informing members of Agency protocol for Agency 
personnel. She stated that she can see where members may want all of the Agency 
personnel at their beck and call, but you can only go through Mr. Grisso or her. The Agency 
funds the activities of the PAC and PAC staff, but is in no way involved in what you can or 
cannot do. 

 
Agenda Item 11. Redevelopment Reports by Cathy Pickering (12:35 PM)  
Ms. Pickering stated that she does not have much to report at this time. She referred to the 
Six on Sixth Economic Revitalization Program and stated that the Agency has designated 
$750,000 for this program in the current year’s budget with $200,000 available now. Mr. 
Smith wanted to know if this $200,000 is a part of the $750,000. Ms. Pickering stated that it 
is in addition to the $750,000. Mr. Smith referred to outstanding applications and wanted to 
know how the Agency is situated with regard to remaining funds. Ms. Pickering stated that 
she does not have those figures. Mr. Smith stated that we must have periodic reports of 
what is happening with these funds so that we do not have the same problem that we had 
with the SRO Rehabilitation Loan Program. He would question the need for the motion from 
the Economics Subcommittee. 
 
Ms. Pickering stated that the original program was for much lower loan amounts and now 
with combined loans, the amounts are higher and they would like the Executive Director of 
the Agency to have signing authority up to $200,000 so as to not hold up the construction 
process while awaiting Commission approval. 
  
Agenda Item 12. Committee Reports by Committee Chairs (12:39 PM) 
Ms. Aquino announced that Ms. McCue from MJM Management attended the HS & HS 
Subcommittee meeting to discuss the dumpster problems at the Alder Hotel and Plaza 
Apartments. Ms. McCue is looking into the street cleaning schedule. Ms. Pickering 
informed the subcommittee that the hanging baskets are not feasible at this time as there is 
no money available. 
 
Mr. Smith wanted to know if the HS & HS Subcommittee dealt with any issues regarding 
pedestrian safety. Ms. Aquino stated that she facilitated a meeting with regard to citizen 
input with other organizations. Mr. Melone stated that many people in wheelchairs and on 
crutches have complained of the crossing lights at Folsom & 6th and Howard and 6th not 
being long enough to get across the street. Mr. Markham stated that there needs to be a 
crosswalk on Folsom Street from the new park across to Russ as everyone crosses mid 
block to get to the park. 
 
Mr. Markham announced that the Economics Subcommittee postponed the mediation 
between City Team and the new businesses until next month. He stated that City team has 
posted a notice letting people know that they could not hang out in front of the building. Mr. 
Markham would request that Mr. Smith keep an eye on this and let him know if people are 
still hanging out, since Mr. Smith lives close by. 
 
Mr. Markham stated that the Economics Subcommittee made a recommendation to the full 
PAC authorizing the Executive Director of the Agency to have budgetary signing authority 
for the Six on Sixth program up to $200,000. Mr. Smith stated that he has concerns of how 
the program and the loan packages are put together. Mr. Range wanted to know if there 
have been a large number of loans for more than $50,000. Mr. Markham stated that there 
were. Mr. Range stated that we are seeing improvements on 6th Street and now there is a 



Executive/Minutes (12 October 07) - 5 - 

greater funding need. For the Executive Director to approve without the Commission’s 
approval means he still must operate within the guidelines established by the Commission. 
Mr. Range stated that he does not see this as a loss, but rather as a gain in speeding up the 
process. We need to allow flexibility within the program. 
 
Ms. Pickering stated that when the program began in 1997, the dollars went a lot further. 
Mr. Smith stated that it is up to the Agency to monitor the program properly to ensure the 
loan packages are delivered to the Commission in a timely manner. If we allow loans up to 
$200,000 with only $750,000 available for the program it would limit the number of people 
that can be served. Mr. Range stated that if the program is successful we can request more 
funding, but we do not want to restrict the work to piecemeal bits by not having enough 
funding. Mr. Smith stated that he would like to see a report with the addresses of who is 
receiving these funds to ensure fair and biased distribution of the program and the loans that 
aren’t approved as well. Ms. Pickering assured Mr. Smith that the information could be 
made available to the Economics Subcommittee on a monthly basis.  
 
Mr. Melone stated that we must consider that the Agency is very strong on following 
procedures. He reminded everyone that construction costs have gone up tremendously. 
 
Mr. Smith referred to the Housing Subcommittee and stated that we will have reports on the 
three hotels that have not completed work after the first of the year. He stated that the 
Housing Subcommittee voted unanimously to recommend the Agency proceed with eminent 
domain on the Hugo Hotel. Mr. Smith stated that he would like to bring to the attention of 
the Executive Committee that it is the subcommittees that do the in depth fact finding and he 
would ask the Executive Committee if we should do more in depth research before moving 
forward. 
 
Mr. Range referred to due notice and stated that it is not our responsibility. He stated that 
we had a good turn out and a great deal of discussion at the Housing Subcommittee. We 
have discussed the Hugo Hotel in depth at the PAC over many years. The Agency would 
not move forward without due diligence. Mr. Melone stated that the silence of the owners 
over the years and the ridiculous amount of money that they want for the building shows that 
they are not serious about selling. 
 
Agenda Item 13. PAC Agenda by Charles Range (1:03 PM) 
Ms. Pickering stated that Mr. Grisso requested that the Hugo Hotel item be placed first on 
the agenda. There will be an agenda item for Mr. Ortega’s reinstatement as well as an item 
from the Economics Subcommittee. 
 
Mr. Smith stated that it is his understanding that it is up to the PAC to build bridges and 
therefore we should invite the owners of the Hugo Hotel to the PAC meeting. Ms. Ban 
stated that Ms. Patel was on the e-mail list for PAC agendas, but recently her e-mails have 
been returned. Mr. Range suggested the Agency provide contact information for the owners 
of the Hugo to PAC staff. 
 
Agenda Item 14. PAC Packet by Charles Range (1:10 PM) 
To be assembled and sent out by staff. Packets will include Mr. Ortega’s reinstatement 
letter, the Agency Memo regarding the Executive Director’s signing authority, an 
announcement of PAC elections and information on the Hugo Hotel.   
 
Agenda Item 15. Committee Member Announcements (1:12 PM) 
Mr. Smith announced that the progress on the bathrooms at the VMD Park is ongoing and 
they should be completed soon. He attended a meeting regarding dogs and smoking at the 



Executive/Minutes (12 October 07) - 6 - 

park and stated that citations would be issued soon. New signs will be posted in strategic 
areas regarding these rules. 
 
Ms. Aquino announced that she attended a safety meeting at the Gene Friend Recreation 
Center where there was a discussion regarding the removal of the bar fencing around the 
parameter as most neighbors feel the fence makes the center look like a prison. She stated 
that everyone wearing a United Playaz jacket is not a part of the group. Ms. Aquino stated 
that there has been concerns over UP activities, but the jackets are all over the 
neighborhood and not everyone wearing one is a member of UP. 
 
Public Comment (1:14 PM) 

 
 

Meeting Ended (1:15 PM) 
 
 

Charles Range 
Acting Chair 


